A Look Back in Time

T West Branch Library, 2419 63" Street, was placed on the City's Landmark List by the Kenosha
Common Council on September 16, 1996. Previously, the library was designated a Kenosha Historic
Site. Evaluations are based on Section 15.04 of the City's Zoning Ordinance in which the structures must
meet at least one of the six (6) standards presented in the ordinance. ‘The West Branch Library is
architecturally significant because it is a fine example of both the Tudor Revival style of architecture and a
residential neighborhood library building. The West Branch Library is historically significant because it
represents the development of library services in Kenosha, one of the most important community education

tools in the city.

T West Branch Library is a one and one-half story Tudor Revival style building that was designed by
local architects Charles Augustine and Arthur P. Kohl and built by the Hutter Construction Company in
1925 at a total cost of $50,000 including equipment. The building has a generally rectangular plan and a
steeply-pitched gable roof. Under the roof eaves are decorative bracKets and exposed rafters, and the gable
peaks are decorated with plain, narrow bargeboards. Projecting from the roof are several steeply-pitched gable-
roofed dormers with narrow-bargeboards and Tudor-arched openings filled with leaded glass in a diamond
pattern. The openings in the main block of the building are primarily irregularly-sized rectangular casements
filled with leaded glass. The openings are decorated with tabbed stone surrounds and some are grouped. in
pairs. On the main elevation, there are two sets of four windows with transoms. They are also filled with
leaded glass and decorated with tabbed stone surrounds. ‘Wooden window boxes are attached to the sills of
some of these windows. There are small Tudor-arched windows decorated with stone surrounds in the gable

peaks, as well.

On the front elevation is a projecting entry pavilion that features a steeply-pitched gable roof and gable
peak decorated [iKe the rest of the building. The main entrance consists of two large wooden Tudor-
arched doors that have decorative wrought-iron hinges and tiny diamond-shaped openings. A flat stone
entablature that features a large label-molding and a tabbed stone surround decorates these doors. English-
style light fixtures flank the entrance, and a decorative wrought-iron balustrade flanKs the concrete and brick.

steps.

( ! e building is also significant because its design was an attempt to fit into the neighborhood. Although
period revival styles were used for institutional buildings during this era, they were often executed in a

more formal, less residential manner. This building could easily pass for a house, an effect that the architects



carried through to the interior, which was reported as “home-like” in an early newspaper account of the
building, for example, the library has a fireplace in the adult reading room. ‘The architects were successful in
creating a building that would fit into the neighborhood without disrupting its scale and ambiance. The fome-
like architecture also created a friendly, neighborhiood atmosphere for the library, maKing patrons feel
comfortable using the facility.

T West Branch Library is one of the branch libraries that maKes up the current Kenosha library system
that features a main library in downtown Kenosha and a number of branch libraries serving the
residential neighborhoods of the community. The free public library movement began in Kenosha in 1895,
when some of the city's citizens formed a library corporation and began to purchase books for a city library. In
1899, industrialist Z. G. Simmons offered to build a library in what is now Library Park and donate it to the
city if the city would levy a tax to support the facility and if they would name the library after his son. The
city agreed, and in 1900, the Simmons Library opened.

s the public library program expanded, the library board began creating branch libraries in other areas

of the city. One of these branches was on the west side, housed in a commercial building until May
1925, when the new West Branch Library was dedicated and formally opened. The new library building was
considered a fine example of modern library construction, with separate adult and children's rooms and a
capacity of 12,000 volumes. The concept of a main library and branch libraries is still in effect in Kenosha
today, and the West Branch Library is actively used by the city's residents.



Mmt communities the size of Kenosha have one large, main library, with, perhaps, one or two small
ranches. Kenosha's public library went a different direction. Instead of maKing a large, centralized
library, which would have meant the extensive alteration or demolition of the Simmons building, Kenosha
decided to expand by creating large branch libraries which would bring the booKs to the people of the
community in a more direct manner. Although large branch libraries are common in larger cities, they are

unusual in medium-sized communities like Kenosha.

( ome sit in by the fireplace in the adult reading room or bring the children to explore the world of
literature. ‘The possibilities are endless in the friendly, home-like atmosphere of the West Branch
Library.



